
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr
Chief Officer (Governance)
Prif Swyddog (Llywodraethu)

1

Swyddog Cyswllt:
Nicola Gittins 01352 702345
nicola.gittins@flintshire.gov.uk

At: Cyng Ian Roberts (Arweinydd)

Y Cynghorwyr: Sean Bibby, Chris Bithell, Mared Eastwood, David Healey, 
Dave Hughes, Paul Johnson, Christine Jones a Billy Mullin

Dydd Iau, 18 Ebrill 2024

Annwyl Gynghorydd,

RHYBUDD O GYFARFOD HYBRID
CABINET

DYDD MERCHER, 24AIN EBRILL, 2024 10.00 AM

Yn gywir

Steven Goodrum
Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

Sylwch: Gellir mynychu’r cyfarfod hwn naill ai wyneb yn wyneb yn Ystafell Bwyllgor 
Delyn, Cyngor Sir y Fflint, Yr Wyddgrug, Sir y Fflint neu ar-lein.

Bydd y cyfarfod yn cael ei ffrydio’n fyw ar wefan y Cyngor.  Bydd y ffrydio byw yn dod 
i ben pan fydd unrhyw eitemau cyfrinachol yn cael eu hystyried.  Bydd recordiad o’r 
cyfarfod ar gael yn fuan ar ôl y cyfarfod ar https://flintshire.publici.tv/core/portal/home

Os oes gennych unrhyw ymholiadau, cysylltwch ag aelod o’r Tîm Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd ar 01352 702345.

Pecyn Dogfen Gyhoeddus

https://flintshire.publici.tv/core/portal/home


2

R H A G L E N

1 YMDDIHEURIADAU 
Pwrpas: Derbyn unrhyw ymddiheuriadau.

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD 
Pwrpas: I derbyn datganiad o gysylltiada chynghori’s Aelodau yn unol a

hynny.

YSTRID YR ADRODDIADAU CANLYNOL

3 PROSIECT ARCHIFAU GOGLEDD DDWYRAIN CYMRU (Tudalennau 5 - 
36)
Adroddiad Prif Swyddog (Addysg ac Ieuenctid) - Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg, 
y Gymraeg, Diwylliant a Hamdden

Pwrpas: I dderbyn cynnig am gyllid gan Gronfa Dreftadaeth y Loteri 
Genedlaethol er mwyn cefnogi gwaith adeiladu Archif newydd i 
Sir y Fflint a Wrecsam a chytuno ar awdurdodau dirprwyedig.

DEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL (MYNEDIAD I WYBODAETH) 1985 - 
YSTYRIED GWAHARDD Y WASG A'R CYHOEDD

Mae’r eitem a ganlyn yn cael ei hystyried yn eitem eithriedig yn rhinwedd 
Paragraff(au) 14 Rhan 4 Atodiad 12A o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 (fel y 
cafodd ei diwygio)

Mae’r adroddiad yn cynnwys manylion materion busnes y Cyngor ac eraill 
mewn perthynas â chontractau ar gyfer gwaith cyfalaf i ysgolion.  Mae’r budd 
i’r cyhoedd o beidio â datgelu’r manylion hynny yn drech na’r budd i’r cyhoedd 
o’u datgelu, hyd nes y bydd y contractau wedi’u dyfarnu.

4 RHAGLEN DREIGL BUDDSODDI CYFALAF A MODEL BUDDSODDI 
CYDFUDDIANNOL CYMUNEDAU CYNALIADWY AR GYFER DYSGU 
LLYWODRAETH CYMRU (Tudalennau 37 - 92)
Adroddiad Prif Swyddog (Addysg ac Ieuenctid) - Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg, 
y Gymraeg, Diwylliant a Hamdden

Pwrpas: Ceisio cymeradwyaeth y Cabinet ar gyfer Cynllun Amlinellol 
Strategol y Cyngor, sy’n nodi anghenion buddsoddi yn y dyfodol 
ar gyfer ystâd yr ysgol dros y saith mlynedd nesaf drwy Gronfa 
Cymunedau Cynaliadwy ar gyfer Dysgu Llywodraeth Cymru.



3

Mae’r eitem a ganlyn yn cael ei hystyried yn eitem eithriedig yn rhinwedd 
Paragraff(au) 14 Rhan 4 Atodiad 12A o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 (fel y 
cafodd ei diwygio)

Mae’r adroddiad yn cynnwys manylion am gontractau arfaethedig ac mae 
budd y cyhoedd o gadw’r wybodaeth yn ôl yn drech na’r budd i’r cyhoedd o'i 
datgelu tan y contractau wedi'u dyfarnu.

5 GWAITH CYFALAF – CAFFAEL GWAITH AR Y GRAGEN ALLANOL DAN 
SATC AR ADEILADAU SY’N EIDDO I’R CYNGOR (TOI, PWYNTIO, 
RENDRO, FFENESTRI A DRYSAU AC ATI) (Tudalennau 93 - 128)
Adroddiad Prif Swyddog (Tai ac Asedau) - Aelod Cabinet Tai ac Adfywio

Pwrpas: Derbyn cymeradwyaeth yr Aelodau i estyn dau gontract sydd 
wedi’u caffael yn barod; drwy Ddyfarniad Uniongyrchol drwy’r 
Fframwaith Caffael a Mwy, gan alluogi’r Cyngor i barhau â 
gwaith SATC ar gragen allanol oddeutu 1500 o eiddo yn ystod y 
pum mlynedd ariannol nesaf.

Mae’r eitem a ganlyn yn cael ei hystyried yn eitem eithriedig yn rhinwedd 
Paragraff(au) 14 Rhan 4 Atodiad 12A o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 (fel y 
cafodd ei diwygio)

Mae budd y cyhoedd o gadw’r wybodaeth yn ôl yn drech na’r budd o’i datgelu 
hyd nes y bydd y contract wedi’i ddyfarnu.

6 DEWISIADAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL: GWASANAETHAU HAMDDEN, 
LLYFRGELLOEDD AC AMGUEDDFEYDD (Tudalennau 129 - 146)
Adroddiad Rheolwr Corfforaethol, Rhaglen Gyfalaf ac Asedau - Aelod Cabinet 
dros Addysg, y Gymraeg, Diwylliant a Hamdden

Pwrpas: Cyflwyno adroddiad am ddewisiadau tymor hwy i ddarparu’r 
gwasanaethau.

Sylwch, efallai y bydd egwyl o 10 munud os yw’r cyfarfod yn para’n hirach na 
dwy awr.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



CABINET

Date of Meeting Wednesday, 24th April 2024

Report Subject North East Wales Archive Project 

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Education, Welsh Language, Culture 
and Leisure

Report Author Chief Officer (Education and Youth)

Type of Report Strategic

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The archive services of Flintshire and Denbighshire Councils have been working 
collaboratively over the last few years under a Memorandum of Understanding, to 
share skills and resources to create a more sustainable and improved archive 
service for the region. This resulted in the launch of a single shared service, North 
East Wales Archives (NEWA), in April 2020, working over 2 current sites – The Old 
Rectory in Hawarden and Ruthin Gaol. 

In October 2023, Cabinet approved a joint bid with Denbighshire County Council 
(DCC) to the National Lottery Heritage Fund, seeking a grant of £7,371,397 towards 
the construction of a new archive centre in Mold, to house the joint service and the 
delivery of an engagement programme. FCC and DCC also agreed match funding 
contributions of £3,078,537 and £2,052,358 respectively.

The move to a single building enables NEWA to combine and better utilise its 
resources, protects the archive collections of the region and enables the delivery of 
an exciting activity plan that will introduce archives to a wider and more diverse 
audience, making a really positive contribution to the learning and wellbeing of our 
residents. 

Tudalen 5

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 3



RECOMMENDATIONS

1 To apprise Cabinet that NEWA has been successful in its grant application 
to the NLHF.

2 To seek Cabinet’s authorisation to accept the NLHF grant offer on behalf of 
NEWA.

3 To ask Cabinet to authorise delegated authority to the Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO) and Lead Member - Planning, Public Health and Public 
Protection, to enable FCC to enter into a Collaboration Agreement that 
covers the construction of the new facility, and operation of NEWA, and a 
Heads of Terms for the Lease of the new archive centre in Mold.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 EXPLAINING THE NORTH EAST WALES ARCHIVE PROJECT

1.01 Both Councils have legislative duties to collect, preserve and make 
accessible documents of historical importance.  Flintshire (FCC) and 
Denbighshire (DCC) Councils are facing several challenges in that regard 
relative to the existing archive buildings, which are not suitable for purpose, 
lack storage capacity and are costly to operate. NEWA also has a very 
narrow user base, meaning their rich collections that offer so much potential 
for supporting education, well-being and community engagement are 
underutilised.  The service also lacks the capacity to reach out and engage 
with wider more diverse audiences; This needs to be expanded and 
widened to ensure the service’s long-term future, and to maximise the 
benefits from the extensive archive materials held.

1.02 The Archive Services of both Councils have been working collaboratively 
over the last few years, to share skills and resources to create a more 
sustainable and improved archive service for the region. This resulted in the 
launch of a single shared service – NEWA, in April 2020, initially over 2 sites 
– The Old Rectory in Hawarden & Ruthin Gaol. A Memorandum of 
Understanding is in place and the project is overseen by a Project Board 
comprising of two senior Council Managers from FCC and DCC, two 
Cabinet members, one from each Council, the NEWA Service Manager and 
is supported by a part time Project Manager. The Project Board meets 
regularly and has clearly defined terms of reference. 

1.03 The joint service submitted a grant application to the NLHF during 
November 2023, to fund both the construction of a new purpose-built 
archive centre adjacent to Theatr Clwyd in Mold and an associated activity 
plan. This provides a repository to safeguard the collections of both 
authorities for generations to come, as well as enabling the staff to co-locate 

Tudalen 6



and benefit from the wider skills within the amalgamated team and have 
capacity to provide an outreach provision within both counties.

1.04 The bid requested £7.371.397 from the NLHF with match funding agreed by 
both local authorities – FCC £3,078.537 and DCC £2,052,358. Match 
contributions were approved by both Cabinets. 

1.05 On the 28th March 2024, the NLHF informed us that the grant application 
had been successful. The NLHF have agreed to provide a development 
phase grant that covers RIBA 1-3 initially. NLHF then review the 
development phase submission prior to release of the Delivery stage grant 
RIBA 5-7. 

1.06 Work is underway to develop a Collaboration Agreement and a Heads of 
Terms for the Lease, to govern the joint arrangements between FCC & DCC, 
both for the delivery of the project, and the operation of the joint service. 
These agreements, which are being progressed by a multi- disciplinary team 
of officers from both authorities are due to be completed later this month 
and will replace the Memorandum of Understanding.

1.07 Project activity is due to commence in mid-May, and a delegated decision 
will enable the contractual discussions with NLHF to take place in sufficient 
time, to commence the project on time and avoid any additional costs due 
to delay at the outset.

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 The project is estimated to cost in total - £12.892.293
The grant from the National Lottery Heritage Fund will total - £7.371.397
FCC’s agreed contribution – £3.078.537
DCC’s agreed contribution – £2.052.358
Welsh Government Culture and Leisure (to be applied for) - £300k

FCC and DCC funding based on a ratio of 60:40 (population split). 

2.02 The provision of a joint archive facility would enable FCC to generate a 
capital receipt from the disposal of the Hawarden site (should this be 
decided).

2.03 Impact on other services
Technical support for the project from various departments across the 
Council will continue to be required, including Legal, Financial, HR, ICT, 
Design & Construction, Procurement and Building Maintenance.

2.04 Impact on Biodiversity and the environment include:
i. The design will incorporate garden areas which will be used to 

“rewild” the landscape creating biodiversity rich spaces. The plans for 
the gardens will also complement the drainage and attenuation 

Tudalen 7



strategy for the site, creating channels that hold water and thus 
provide a more diverse plant and animal habitat.

ii. Opportunities to incorporate features for biodiversity into the new 
building will also be maximised. For example, in built bat and bird 
boxes that will complement the landscaping and provide homes for 
species already on site. 

iii. It is estimated this project will generate a significant carbon saving of 
that will contribute towards FCC’s commitment to reducing its carbon 
emissions, and the move to becoming a carbon neutral Council in 
line with Welsh Government’s ambition for a carbon neutral public 
sector by 2030.

iv. This project supports the Council’s “Green Council” priority by 
reducing carbon emissions, via its Net zero Carbon/Passivhaus 
design, and increase the amount of energy generated by renewables, 
via installation of solar PV on the roof and consideration of inclusion 
of a small ground source heat pump to provide space heating and 
cooling requirements.

2.05 Anti-Poverty impact include:
i. Consideration will be given to providing supportive rates on any fees 

and charges activity undertaken by the Joint Archive Service.

2.06 Equalities impact include:
ii. The new building will be fully DDA compliant and accessible for all 

users which the current sites are not.
iii. The new building will be purposely designed as an archive facility and 

therefore designed with health and safety of staff and customers in 
mind.

iv. The Joint Archive Service delivery model is that of a hub and spoke. 
The hub being the new building in Mold and the spokes being 
permanent and temporary outreach activity across the two counties.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 Formal reports have been presented to the following groups:
i. Informal Cabinet (November 2018, October 2019, September 2021,) 
ii. Capital and Assets Programme Board (July 2019)
iii. Special COT (September 2019)
iv. COT Business (October 2019, January 2022 & November 2022)
v. Education and Youth Operational Scrutiny Committee (November 

2019)
vi. Cabinet (November 2019, January 2024)

3.02 Specific engagement meetings have been had with the following internal 
stakeholders within Flintshire:
 Political: Lead Members and ward Members
 Operational: CEO, Chief Officers Team, Flintshire Record Office (archive 

service), Legal Services, Financial Services, Biodiversity Officer, 

Tudalen 8



Conservation Officer, Trees Officer, Building Design & Cost consultancy 
Team Leader, Carbon Officer, Health and Safety Officer, and Strategic 
Assets. 

3.03 Externally the following have been engaged with:
 Denbighshire County Council
 Wrexham County Borough Council
 Theatr Clwyd
 The National Archive (TNA)
 Wales Assembly Government – Culture and Leisure Department
 The National Lottery Heritage Fund (NLHF)
 Glyndwr University
 HMP Berwyn
 Various charities and other providers

3.04 Consultation and engagement with our key funder NLHF, archive users 
and traditionally non-users and activity plan delivery partners will be 
ongoing. So far the public have been engaged as follows:
 Stand and questionnaire at the Flint and Denbigh Show (August 2019)
 Public Briefing and online questionnaire launched via social media 

(September 2019)
 Consultation with service users about proposed changes. Majority of 

responses received were in favour of proposals. 

3.05 Consultation with elected members, especially Cabinet and Hawarden ward 
members, which will be ongoing.

3.06 Consultation with local stakeholders and key partners will also be 
undertaken e.g. local history groups, Gladstone Library, Aura Libraries and 
Leisure etc.

4.00 IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 The Project will be managed via a Risk Register. 

4.02 Under the five delivery principles of the Well-being of Future 
Generations Act this project scored 3 out of 4 stars (actual score 28/36). 
Implications of the score include: - 
Ways of Working (Sustainable Development) Principles Impact 

Ways of Working Principle Impact 

Long-term

Prevention

Integration

The business case does evidence a 
long term view, particularly on the 
impact and outcomes it aims to achieve 
from the delivery of its Activity Plan.

Tudalen 9



Collaboration

Involvement

The business case can be improved by 
considering in greater detail the legacy 
for the vacated spaces in Ruthin and 
Hawarden.

4.03 Against the seven well-being goals of the Act, the potential impact of the 
report is evaluated as follows: - 

Well-being Principle Impact 

Prosperous Wales Positive

Resilient Wales Neutral

Healthier Wales Positive

More Equal Wales Positive

Cohesive Wales Positive

Vibrant Wales Positive

Globally Responsible 
Wales 

Neutral

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01  Appendix A – Project Milestones
 Appendix B – Well-being Impact Assessment

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 Contact Officer: Sian Price, Project Manager / Craig Berry, Joint Archive 
Manager
Telephone: 07917 06731 / 01824 708023
Emailsian.lloydprice@denbighshire.gov.uk/ craig.berry@denbighshire.gov.uk

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 Outreach
This is where the archive service is taken out to where the public are (e.g. 
in communities) instead of the public coming to where the archive service 
is (e.g. in Mold, Hawarden, Ruthin).

Tudalen 10

mailto:sian.lloydprice@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:craig.berry@denbighshire.gov.uk


RIBA
Relates to the Royal Institute of British Architects.  When RIBA appears with 
a number after it, e.g. RIBA 3, this relates to a stage of the Plan of Work 
which is used by Architects and Building Professionals to organise the tasks, 
information gathering and consultation that they need to undertake, when 
delivering a construction project. 

Tudalen 11



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



North East Wales Joint Archive Project:
Well-being Impact Assessment Report

This report summarises the likely impact of the proposal on the social, economic, environmental and

cultural well-being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.

Assessment Number: 703

Brief description: The North East Wales Joint Archive Project will provide a sustainable, efficient

and improved archive service for Denbighshire and Flintshire and will be delivered in the following

phases: - Phase I – Single Shared Service: the creation of a single shared service operating across

Flintshire and Denbighshire - Phase II – New Building: A new purpose built Archive building with

passivhaus storage. - Phase III - Activity Plan: An activity plan to widen and diversify the audience

service and deliver a sustainable service.

Date Completed: 20/07/2023 09:46:25 Version: 2

Completed by: Sian Lloyd Price

Responsible Service: Housing and Communities Service

Localities affected by the proposal: Whole County,

Who will be affected by the proposal? At the workshop the following people were identified: -

Local people who use the archive - People using the proposed new site - Archive staff (business

case assumes no FTE change but they will need to learn new skills) - Schools - Vacated building x 2

(opportunities for Ruthin Gaol heritage attraction to expand) - Better physical access for users -

Health partners - New target audiences which will be developed by the project - Disability (mental

health, Dementia, dyslexia); Young people (toddlers, schoolchildren 5 – 18, students 18 – 22, young

people 14 – 21, young carers); LGBT+; Low income groups; Prisoners - Library users and staff -

North East Wales Joint Archive Project

Page 1 of 22 Printed on 20/07/2023Tudalen 13



Archive Volunteers - Archive Depositors (existing and potential) - Members and other politicians -

Theatr Clwyd (the organisation and its users) - Businesses in Ruthin

Was this impact assessment completed as a group? Yes

North East Wales Joint Archive Project

Page 2 of 22 Printed on 20/07/2023Tudalen 14



Summary and Conclusion

Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider how

the proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in a

manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability

of future generations to meet their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach

3 out of 4 stars

Actual score : 31 / 36.

Summary for each Sustainable Development principle

Long term

The proposed purpose built archive centre will be built to passivhaus standards in the storage area

and net carbon zero in all other areas. This will help to reduce energy consumption and energy costs

substantially. The plans are for Denbighshire's Heritage Service to use the vacated space at the

Gaol to expand their visitor attraction. Ruthin Gaols should have reduced energy consumption and

costs associated to it (with no archives being stored).

Prevention

The planned activity programme will improve the well-being and health of individuals. This should

reduce reliance on other public services. The environmentally friendly new archive centre has been

designed to minimise carbon emissions. The grounds and natural landscape will be developed.

Integration

The project links to the majority of well-being goals and the corporate priorities of both FCC & DCC

and other public sector organisations.

Collaboration

The North East Wales Archives is a collaboration between Denbighshire County Council and

Flintshire County Council. There are a lot of collaboration with other groups / organisations e.g.

North East Wales Joint Archive Project

Page 3 of 22 Printed on 20/07/2023Tudalen 15



Theatr Clwyd, HMP Berwyn, schools, libraries, care homes, voluntary organisations and this

collaboration will continue once the building is open to the public.

Involvement

Engagement has been a fundamental aspect of this project. Current service users and non-users

have all been consulted with. Partners, local MAG and other stakeholders have all been consulted

with.

Summary of impact

Well-being Goals Overall Impact

A prosperous Denbighshire Positive

A resilient Denbighshire Neutral

A healthier Denbighshire Positive

A more equal Denbighshire Positive

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities Positive

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language Positive

A globally responsible Denbighshire Neutral

Main conclusions

Some of the details surrounding the proposed new archive centre are still to be determined but the

fundamental principle of combining the resources of NEWA into one building, enables the service to

deliver a 'hub and spoke' delivery model. This will see NEWA having an increased presence out in

local communities. Taking archives out to local communities and using them to inform, educate and

North East Wales Joint Archive Project

Page 4 of 22 Printed on 20/07/2023Tudalen 16



entertain will deliver positive outcomes for all involved. Local communities will have better access to

the service, be better informed about their history, heritage and culture, leading to greater

awareness, improved well-being and lead to changes in behaviour. 

The project's contribution to skills and volunteering also supports many of these wellbeing goals. 

The vacated space at Ruthin Gaol will be used to expand the heritage attraction on this site. This will

increase footfall and boost the local economy in Ruthin and surrounding areas. 

The passivahus / net carbon zero design for the new building will help ensure NEWA is operating

from a building that is contributing towards improved environmental standards.

On the whole this project will contribute greatly to the Council's duty under the Future Generations Act

and meet its obligation in the Council Plan.

North East Wales Joint Archive Project

Page 5 of 22 Printed on 20/07/2023Tudalen 17



The likely impact on Denbighshire, Wales and the world.

A prosperous Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Positive

Justification for impact

Positive as the new environmentally friendly archive centre will contribute positively to low carbon

society and facilitate increases in visitors to the region.

The planned 'hub and spoke' operating model for NEWA should have a positive impact in

Denbighshire communities. 

Bringing NEWA's resources together under one roof will help to provide greater opportunities for

upskilling team members, volunteers and apprentices. 

The planned heritage expansion plans for Ruthin Gaol will increase footfall and improve the local

economy in the local area. The expanded heritage attraction is likely to attract a far greater number of

visitors compared to that of the archive service.

The project will deliver upskilling in staff and users and within target audiences.

Further actions required

We need to continue working on the heritage expansion plans for Ruthin Gaol and ensuring that an

enhanced visitor attraction is developed.

Should consider more the positive impact this project can have on tourism across the region.

Bus services do stop at the site but this is not frequently. As demand is known pressure could be

applied to consider improved transport links. Also consider electric vehicle availability for staff use

which would be a mitigating factor.

There are extensive plans for the Ruthin Gaol site which will build on the offer that Ruthin has for its

residents and visitors. This will benefit the local economy.

Positive impacts identified:

North East Wales Joint Archive Project

Page 6 of 22 Printed on 20/07/2023Tudalen 18



A low carbon society

The new building will be built to Passivhaus standards in the storage area and net carbon zero in all

other areas. Reducing energy and carbon substantially. 

There will be solar panels on the new building.

Reduced carbon emissions at Ruthin Gaol with archive's environmental management system not

needing to be operated.

Quality communications, infrastructure and transport

We are removing the flood risk associated with remaining at Ruthin Gaol. 

We are proposing to increase archives infrastructure and resilience by creating outreach services in

easy to reach buildings and areas e.g. libraries, community centres, schools etc. 

There is good mobile infrastructure.

Theatr Clwyd refurbishment plans may include changes to the bus services.

Economic development

The Heritage service's plans for an expanded attraction at Ruthin Gaol using the vacated space, will

have a positive economic impact in Ruthin with increased footfall, community space, café, local

engagement. This will attract footfall to Clwyd Street and improve the economy in this part of town.

Quality skills for the long term

Opportunities for archives to support schools with the new curriculum e.g. sense of place (Cynefin). 

Increased engagement with groups e.g. libraries, schools, HMP Berwyn, Glyndwr University, helping

to increase skills, literacy, numeracy and knowledge of local history.

The project will allow us to offer an much larger volunteers programme by having all staff in one

location. 

Opportunities for a more exciting and wider work programme for volunteers.

North East Wales Joint Archive Project

Page 7 of 22 Printed on 20/07/2023Tudalen 19



Also opportunities for staff to develop new skills for the long term.

The project will also allow us to take on more work experience and apprentices. 

Succession options for conservator functions can be considered.

Quality jobs for the long term

Improved opportunities for up-skilling the workforce and for working with a wider range of users. 

Skills transfer opportunities, working with partners and short terms contractors.

The improved access facilities will allow us to employ a more diverse workforce. 

Easier for recruitment for NEWA by being in a new and modern archive centre.

Childcare

Having all of the NEWA team together and running one search-room an operating one building, will

create enhanced opportunities for working from home.

Negative impacts identified:

A low carbon society

Staff and users potentially travelling longer distances by private car, although there will be a lot of

outreach work in libraries and schools which could be closer to their home. There is potential of

having an electric vehicle available for staff to use too.

The Gaol will still need to be maintained and heated, continuing to contribute to DCC's carbon

emissions (albeit at a lower consumption rate).

Quality communications, infrastructure and transport

Access to the proposed site via public transport is challenging. This is a challenge across both

Counties in existing state- not necessarily any worse in new state but should be noted.

There is a safe walking route from the town to the site although the distance may be daunting to

walkers.

North East Wales Joint Archive Project

Page 8 of 22 Printed on 20/07/2023Tudalen 20



Economic development

There is a risk that Heritage Service may not secure all of the necessary funding to develop all parts

of the Gaol and this may limit the expanded heritage attraction and reduce the economic impact.

Quality skills for the long term

Sustainability of skills sets is reliant on training budgets, which have been reduced in recent times.

Quality jobs for the long term

Potential restructure over the longer term could affect staff.

Childcare

Not yet known

A resilient Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Neutral

Justification for impact

Passivhaus design of proposed new archive centre will contribute positively to energy and fuel

consumption.. Ruthin Gaol energy use should also reduce with the archives environmental

management system not needing to be used. 

By working together and achieving the same aim of a positive outcome. The landscaping plans for

the new site will enhance the natural area and connect to the surrounding landscape.

Further actions required

Loss of trees would be off set by re-landscaping the area

North East Wales Joint Archive Project

Page 9 of 22 Printed on 20/07/2023Tudalen 21



Electric vehicle for staff use. 

Need to consider waste and recycling.

Positive impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the natural environment

No protected species currently on the site or at either existing site.

Biodiversity in the built environment

No protected species currently. Formalised garden and landscape area, particularly focussed on

being dementia friendly.

We propose to take a re-wilding approach that is sympathetic to the preservation of archive

materials (e.g. no increase in paper-eating insects).

Reducing waste, reusing and recycling

Construction will consider using sustainable recycled materials and there will be an emphasis on the

contractor to reduce waste on site (as part of the waste management plan). There will be a cultural

change in the new building on how we recycle and reuse.

When moving out of a building, consideration needs to be made with the furniture, fixtures and fittings

left behind and whether these can potentially be gifted to schools or that CAD recycling can

repurpose them. Archive racking in the Gaol could potentially be recycled by being used by

Denbighshire Heritage service.

Reduced energy/fuel consumption

The passivhaus and carbon net zero building plans do include solar PV but may be substituted with

link to solar farm when that comes online. 

The planned heritage expansion plans at Ruthin Gaol are likely to require less energy consumption.

People’s awareness of the environment and biodiversity

Proposed to have interpretation boards within the landscaped area along walk ways.

North East Wales Joint Archive Project

Page 10 of 22 Printed on 20/07/2023Tudalen 22



Spaces created for people to stop and sit and be with nature.

Iconic building will attract lots of people to the building as well as the archives service.

Flood risk management

Landscaping will factor in water attenuation and include sustainable drainage system.

Negative impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the natural environment

Loss of some trees that are of limited ecological value. Landscaping will make up the removal of this.

Biodiversity in the built environment

Not yet known

Reducing waste, reusing and recycling

No known impacts - to be considered

Reduced energy/fuel consumption

Possible increase in some staff travel 

.

People’s awareness of the environment and biodiversity

Not yet known

Flood risk management

Not yet known

A healthier Denbighshire

North East Wales Joint Archive Project

Page 11 of 22 Printed on 20/07/2023Tudalen 23



Overall Impact

Positive

Justification for impact

Positive impact on mental health and wellbeing is a core aim of the this project, particularly the broad

and exciting activity plan. 

Need to manage carefully the change in location and approach of the archive service delivery for

existing users so any detrimental impacts are lessened/avoided.

Further actions required

People with invisible disabilities who would like to participate but the environment might not be

suitable - this needs to be considered.

Supporting change process amongst staff and users required

Positive impacts identified:

A social and physical environment that encourage and support health and well-being

The 'hub and spoke' delivery model aims to use archives to improve the health and well-being of

individuals. 

NEWA will be designed to be more accessible to Denbighshire residents.

Dedicated space for learning. The well-being goals are being embedded in curriculum and there are

opportunities to promote the facility to schools.

Physical space will be a safe place for all and more accessible to more people, with different needs. 

Access to good quality, healthy food

Theatr Clwyd cafe and restaurant plans - using local food. Refreshments also available at another

site within walking distance.

North East Wales Joint Archive Project

Page 12 of 22 Printed on 20/07/2023Tudalen 24



People’s emotional and mental well-being

The outreach programme will take the archives out to local communities - educating and improving

health and well-being of individuals 

The 'hub and spoke' delivery model provides greater opportunities to deliver an outreach programme

that will improve the health and well-being of the communities in Denbighshire. 

Opportunities to bring people together to combat loneliness. 

Opportunities to use primary archive material in dementia- visiting places of interest as well as

archive material.

Helping people with loss - remembering loved ones, how and when and where they live.

Opportunities to learn and to volunteer which increase wellbeing.

Access to healthcare

Opportunities to link in with social prescribing to treat conditions.

Longer opening hours. 

Planned engagement activities may relieve some pressure on care providers.

Participation in leisure opportunities

Activity programme out in communities.

Both increasing opportunities for participation. Also these activities will be designed to target groups

that don't normally participate.

Negative impacts identified:

A social and physical environment that encourage and support health and well-being

Reliance on cars to get to the NEW Archives Service location potentially reducing active travel

North East Wales Joint Archive Project

Page 13 of 22 Printed on 20/07/2023Tudalen 25



options.

Access to good quality, healthy food

None

People’s emotional and mental well-being

Impact on regular users about this change- location of archive - need to be managed carefully

Access to healthcare

Not yet known

Participation in leisure opportunities

none

A more equal Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Positive

Justification for impact

The target audiences that this project will develop include those with protected characteristics.

To ensure this remains positive the project will need to manage the potential contention of increasing

and opening access at same time as needing to deliver a resilient service.

Further actions required

Project will benefit from clear branding for activity programme and careful scheduling of activities at

the site to ensure a welcoming and appropriate environment for all users.

Activity plan will have an increased focus on those from such groups 

North East Wales Joint Archive Project

Page 14 of 22 Printed on 20/07/2023Tudalen 26



The building environment will ensure that its accessible and comfortable for all .

Positive impacts identified:

Improving the well-being of people with protected characteristics. The nine protected
characteristics are: age; disability; gender reassignment; marriage or civil partnership;
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation

Target audiences include - living with dementia, mental health, families, LGBTQ+, those with

protected characteristics and for those to be involved in a service where they may not have had an

opportunity to do so before.

People who suffer discrimination or disadvantage

Activity plan target audiences include: Prisoners, LGBTQ+, Dementia. The programme will include

active engagement with such groups.

Ways archive operate and collections held may change by this engagement.

Creating vibrant environment.

Encourage a safe place for all.

People affected by socio-economic disadvantage and unequal outcomes

Basic archive function will remain free at point of access.

Some targeted groups will receive free activities

Areas affected by socio-economic disadvantage

Often those with other protected characteristics above also lower economic background too so

increasing provision and outcomes for these groups will also be positive in this category.

Negative impacts identified:

Improving the well-being of people with protected characteristics. The nine protected
characteristics are: age; disability; gender reassignment; marriage or civil partnership;

North East Wales Joint Archive Project

Page 15 of 22 Printed on 20/07/2023Tudalen 27



pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation

none

People who suffer discrimination or disadvantage

Need to ensure that those on lower incomes are not excluded due to travel to new hub or any fees

and charges regime

People affected by socio-economic disadvantage and unequal outcomes

Fees and charges may be a barrier.

Areas affected by socio-economic disadvantage

Facilitating people to come to site who may not be able to afford transport- may miss out

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities

Overall Impact

Positive

Justification for impact

The benefits of the project will bring to community participation, belonging, identity and reliance

makes this impact positive.

Further actions required

The Activity Plan will involve working with many organisations across the 2 authorities and also

include outreach work - taking the NEW Archives Service into all parts of the counties.

Scope to work with library services in the 2 counties and that a lot of community groups either meet

at these locations or have close links with them.

The approaching area will be landscaped enabling visitors to enjoy the outdoors during their visit.

An archive presence will remain at Ruthin gaol.

North East Wales Joint Archive Project

Page 16 of 22 Printed on 20/07/2023Tudalen 28



Positive impacts identified:

Safe communities and individuals

Skills building in partnership with HMP Berwyn reducing the likelihood of reoffending and increasing

skills. Positive engagement with prison staff on how the project will work once opened.

Helping to create a feeling of sense and understanding of history and area for local communities.

Community participation and resilience

Activity Plan with under-represented parts of our community will help in collecting and preserving their

stories and widen our collections. 

The project aims to engage with a broader range of stakeholders.

Connection with the Theatre could lead to greater interaction with our shared heritage and history.

Opportunities for volunteering and apprenticeships will increase.

The attractiveness of the area

Local projects to improve the area- connecting people to deliver e.g. memorials- in villages etc.

An enhanced heritage visitor attraction at Ruthin Gaol will make this location more desirable.

Connected communities

A lot of the activity plan will involve work out in communities and therefore taking the offer out to them.

There would also be online resources and digital availability was deemed high on a recent survey

with users.

Using heritage to generate feeling of belonging.

Increased reason to visit local libraries and other community locations

Activity Plan will include student placements, and volunteering opportunities.

North East Wales Joint Archive Project

Page 17 of 22 Printed on 20/07/2023Tudalen 29



Rural resilience

Potential to increase visitors into Ruthin if ambitions around Ruthin Gaol are realised.

Activity programme- more outreach going to rural isolated areas.

Negative impacts identified:

Safe communities and individuals

none

Community participation and resilience

Need to manage any sense of loss of service in Ruthin community. This will be mitigated via

increased activities out in local communities. 

An archive presence will remain at Ruthin Gaol with an Archivist onsite one day each week.

The attractiveness of the area

none

Connected communities

Longer travelling times for some, maybe a barrier. This sill be mitigated through increased work out

in communities. many communities will have greater access to archives through the community

engagement programme. 

An archive presence will also remain at Ruthin Gaol.

Rural resilience

Feeling of loss of a key public service in Ruthin (although will be replaced with enhanced heritage

attraction). 

An archive presence will also remain at Ruthin Gaol.

North East Wales Joint Archive Project

Page 18 of 22 Printed on 20/07/2023Tudalen 30



A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language

Overall Impact

Positive

Justification for impact

This project will increase the exposure to Denbighshire's rich culture and heritage and increase the

access to it.

The collections have a lot of Welsh relevant aspects to them and the project will mean these are

better cared for and interpreted and shared.

Individuals will have a greater understanding our our history, culture and heritage.

Further actions required

There are plans to build on the current offer of Ruthin Gaol once the archives service has vacated,

this is part of a long term plan. The heritage service has plans to use the vacated space to create an

enhanced heritage attraction. Some funds have been made available for this and other external

sources of funding are being explored.

Positive impacts identified:

People using Welsh

All NEWA activities will be bilingual.

More opportunities for the wider NEWA team to learn Welsh. 

Welsh language collections taken out to local communities.

Bilingual team

Promoting the Welsh language

Better utilisation of NEWA's Welsh language collections and using them to inform and educate

North East Wales Joint Archive Project

Page 19 of 22 Printed on 20/07/2023Tudalen 31



communities in Denbighshire of their rich cultural heritage.

Global draw.

Showcasing Welsh culture.

Bringing together Welsh language collections.

Bilingual team

Culture and heritage

Located near the Theatre will lead to the creation of a cultural/heritage campus. 

Opportunity for expansion of existing heritage attraction at Ruthin Gaol (items of interest, education

room etc).

The planned outreach work will help to promote and education on Denbighshire's culture and

heritage.

The new curriculum in Wales promotes a sense of place (Cynefin), which can be supported via

archives. 

Facilities around culture and heritage in localities (libraries and temporary community programme)-

more spread than just the 2 locations currently.

Negative impacts identified:

People using Welsh

No negative impacts

Promoting the Welsh language

n/a

Culture and heritage

North East Wales Joint Archive Project

Page 20 of 22 Printed on 20/07/2023Tudalen 32



n/a

A globally responsible Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Neutral

Justification for impact

On the whole the project is assessed as positive on global responsibility. 

Reduced emissions. 

An archive service that is available across the region (rather than just having to travel to Ruthin)

Increased digital access

Further actions required

Opportunities around procurement/supply chain to facilitate good outcomes in this area should be

taken at the appropriate time, especially with the construction contract.

Electric vehicle for staff

Positive impacts identified:

Local, national, international supply chains

The net carbon zero/passivhaus design reduces reliance on fuel which is a finite commodity and

imported from abroad. Some materials may need to be sourced from further afield and there will be

pressure on the contractor to purchase locally.

Human rights

Target audience include those with dementia which tend to be those who are older.

Potential partnership with Alzheimers society and contribute to being a Dementia Friendly

organisation.

Broader service provision in the local area or the region

North East Wales Joint Archive Project

Page 21 of 22 Printed on 20/07/2023Tudalen 33



Archives activities will be spread more broadly across Denbighshire, rather than the current situation

with a focus on Ruthin. 

There are great opportunities to engage with partners on the Activity Plan and to get them engaged

once the funding is approved. This will help partners to achieve their objectives.

Reducing climate change

Net Carbon Zero/Passivhaus building.

Digital resources will reduce the need for people to travel.

Reduced omissions from new archive centre and Ruthin Gaol.

Taking the archive service out to local communities, should reduce the need to ravel for some.

Negative impacts identified:

Local, national, international supply chains

Materials used for the build potentially originated from further afield

Human rights

none

Broader service provision in the local area or the region

none

Reducing climate change

Possible increased staff travel.

North East Wales Joint Archive Project

Page 22 of 22 Printed on 20/07/2023Tudalen 34



PROJECT TIMESCALES

NLHF Grant offer & acceptance of NLHF development phase contract End March –May 24

Engage employers agent & D&B contractor May 24-Nov 24

RIBA stage 2 feasibility Nov 24-Jan 25

RIBA 3 detailed design Feb 25-Apr 25

Planning period (inc pre planning consultation) Jun 25-Dec 25

NLHF Development Phase submission & assessment Aug 25 Oct 25

RIBA 4 detailed design Jun 25-Dec 25

NLHF Delivery Phase Grant award March 26-Apr-26

Approvals & construction contract award Jan 26-Apr 26

Mobilisation Apr/May 26

Construction May 26 – July 27

ICT fit out & decant/recant July 27-Sept/Oct 27

Building opens Oct 27

Tudalen 35



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Dogfen Gyfyngedig - Ni ddylid ei chyhoeddi

Tudalen 37

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 4
Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Dogfen Gyfyngedig - Ni ddylid ei chyhoeddi

Tudalen 45

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Dogfen Gyfyngedig - Ni ddylid ei chyhoeddi

Tudalen 47

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Dogfen Gyfyngedig - Ni ddylid ei chyhoeddi

Tudalen 93

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 5
Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Dogfen Gyfyngedig - Ni ddylid ei chyhoeddi

Tudalen 97

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Dogfen Gyfyngedig - Ni ddylid ei chyhoeddi

Tudalen 101

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Dogfen Gyfyngedig - Ni ddylid ei chyhoeddi

Tudalen 105

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Dogfen Gyfyngedig - Ni ddylid ei chyhoeddi

Tudalen 117

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Dogfen Gyfyngedig - Ni ddylid ei chyhoeddi

Tudalen 129

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 6
Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Dogfen Gyfyngedig - Ni ddylid ei chyhoeddi

Tudalen 143

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Dogfen Gyfyngedig - Ni ddylid ei chyhoeddi

Tudalen 145

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol


	Rhaglen
	3 Prosiect Archifau Gogledd Ddwyrain Cymru
	Enc. 1 for North East Wales Archive Project
	North East Wales Joint Archive Project: Well-being Impact Assessment Report
	Summary and Conclusion
	Score for the sustainability of the approach
	Summary for each Sustainable Development principle
	Long term
	Prevention
	Integration
	Collaboration
	Involvement

	Summary of impact
	Main conclusions

	The likely impact on Denbighshire, Wales and the world.
	A prosperous Denbighshire
	Overall Impact
	Justification for impact
	Further actions required
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A resilient Denbighshire
	Overall Impact
	Justification for impact
	Further actions required
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A healthier Denbighshire
	Overall Impact
	Justification for impact
	Further actions required
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A more equal Denbighshire
	Overall Impact
	Justification for impact
	Further actions required
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
	Overall Impact
	Justification for impact
	Further actions required
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
	Overall Impact
	Justification for impact
	Further actions required
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A globally responsible Denbighshire
	Overall Impact
	Justification for impact
	Further actions required
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:




	Enc. 2 for North East Wales Archive Project

	4 Rhaglen Dreigl Buddsoddi Cyfalaf a Model Buddsoddi Cydfuddiannol Cymunedau Cynaliadwy ar gyfer Dysgu Llywodraeth Cymru
	Enc. 1 for Welsh Government’s (WG) Sustainable Communities for Learning Rolling Capital Investment Programme and Mutual Investment Model (MIM)
	Enc. 2 for Welsh Government’s (WG) Sustainable Communities for Learning Rolling Capital Investment Programme and Mutual Investment Model (MIM)

	5 Gwaith Cyfalaf – Caffael Gwaith ar y Gragen Allanol dan SATC ar adeiladau sy’n eiddo i’r Cyngor (Toi, Pwyntio, Rendro, Ffenestri a Drysau ac ati)
	Enc. 1 for Capital Works – Procurement of WHQS Envelope Works to Council owned properties. (Roofing, Pointing, Rendering, Windows & Doors etc.)
	Enc. 2 for Capital Works – Procurement of WHQS Envelope Works to Council owned properties. (Roofing, Pointing, Rendering, Windows & Doors etc.)
	Enc. 3 for Capital Works – Procurement of WHQS Envelope Works to Council owned properties. (Roofing, Pointing, Rendering, Windows & Doors etc.)
	Enc. 4 for Capital Works – Procurement of WHQS Envelope Works to Council owned properties. (Roofing, Pointing, Rendering, Windows & Doors etc.)

	6 Dewisiadau ar gyfer y dyfodol: gwasanaethau hamdden, llyfrgelloedd ac amgueddfeydd
	Enc. 1 for Future options: leisure, libraries, and museum services
	Enc. 2 for Future options: leisure, libraries, and museum services


